
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enquiries: Z Mbunquka Tel: 023 346 8000 Fax: 044 8732199 E-mail: zmbunquka@bgcma.co.za 
 
Reference: 4/10/2/J11J/Buffelsfontein 36/3,Ladismith  Date: 29 October  2021 

 

 
Cape Environmental Assessment Practioners (Pty)Ltd 
P.O BOX 2070 
George 
6530 

 

Attention Ms Mellisa Mackay. 

Dear Madam 

 

COMMENTS ON THE  DRAFT  24G RECTIFICATION REPORT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF AN 

EARTH DAM ON PORTION 3 OF 36 BUFFELSFONTEIN AND PORTION 66 OF 42 VOORBAAT, 

NEAR LADISMITH. 

 

With reference to the application received by the Breede-Gouritz Catchment Management Agency 

on 20 August 2021 and after having had the opportunity to assess the application, herewith the 

following: 

 

It is noted on Page 6 of the aquatic impact assessment report that construction of the dam 

commenced in May 2018 and took place within the watercourse bed, banks and adjacent 

areas. The enlargement of the existing dam commenced  without the necessary water use 

approval from this office, while the commenced activity is in contravention of section 32 of 

the National Water Act,1998 (Act 36 of 1998). Section 21 (b) and (c)&(i) of the 

aforementioned act is triggered. This office will escalate this matter to the Compliance 

Monitoring and Enforcement unit section, for further investigation. 

 

The BGCMA reserves the right to revise initial comments and request further information based on 

any additional information that might be received. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

JAN  VAN STADEN 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (ACTING) 
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Cape EAPrac, 
P.O Box 2070, 
George, 
6530 
 
Attention: Ms Melissa Mackay 
By email: (mel@cape-eaprac.co.za) 
 
Dear Ms Melissa Mackay 
 
DRAFT 24G RECTIFICATION APPLICATION REPORT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF AN 
EARTH DAM ON PORTION 3 OF 36 BUFFELSFONTEIN AND PORTION 66 OF 42 
VOORBAAT, NEAR LADISMITH, KANNALAND LOCAL MUNICIPALITY, WESTERN 
CAPE. 
 
DEA&DP reference: 14/2/4/1/D3/8/0027/19 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 
CapeNature would like to thank you for the opportunity to review your application on portion 
3 of farm Buffelsfontein Farm 36 and Portion 66 of farm Voorbaat 42, near Ladismith. The 
applicant is applying for 24 G Rectification of unlawful activities. The following commenced:   
“The activity entails the unlawful construction of a dam of approximately 3.6ha on a non-
perennial watercourse draining into the Groot River on Portion 3 of 36 Buffelsfontein and 
Portion 42 of 66 Voorbaat. The dam is a replacement of an existing dam that was previously 
located in the Groot River that was washed away.” 
 
Please note that our comments only pertain to the biodiversity related impacts and not the 
overall desirability of the application. CapeNature wishes to make the following comments:  
 
According to the Western Cape Biodiversity Spatial Plan (WCBSP 2017)1 Critical Biodiversity 
Areas (CBA 1: Aquatic and Wetlands) is to the south of the earth dam. The dam was 
constructed within Ecological Support Areas (ESA 1: Aquatic; 2: Restore) and Other Natural 
Areas are mapped around the boundary of the dam. The BSP mapped the following features 
present at the site: 
 

• Cape Mountain Zebra 

• Matjiesfontein Quartzite Fynbos (LT) 

• Western Gwarrieveld (LT) 

 
1 Pool-Stanvliet, R., Duffell-Canham, A., Pence, G. & Smart, R. 2017. The Western Cape Biodiversity Spatial Plan Handbook. Stellenbosch: 
CapeNature. 
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• Watercourse protection- Southern Folded Mountains 

The current dam has unnamed non-perennial rivers which flows into the Groot River, south of 
the dam. The natural vegetation unit on the site would have been Least Concerned Western 
Gwarrieveld and Matjiesfontein Quartzite Fynbos as listed in the updated ecosystem threat 
listing of the National Biodiversity Assessment (Skowno et al. 2018)2.  
 
ESA regions are areas delineated that are in a natural condition that are required to meet 

biodiversity targets, for species, ecosystems or ecological processes and infrastructure (ESA 

2 are degraded ESA). As stipulated in the Land Use Advice (LUA) Handbook (Pool-Stanvliet 

et al. 2017)3. It should be noted that it is the landowner’s responsibility to ensure their property 

is suitably maintained at a level consistent with LUA guidelines. Will the loss of the ESA 1 and 

ESA 2 on the site therefore compromise any CBA and conservation targets and what control 

measures will be put in place to ensure this? Especially in terms of the reasons for WCBSP 

delineation on site. Please refer to Table 4.7 in the LUA Handbook in terms of what is defined 

as intensive agricultural practice. 

 

The landowner should have considered or investigated other methods to protect the existing 

water resources, for example reducing evaporation through covering dams or using numerous 

different irrigation techniques to reduce water loss, considering the impact this construction 

had on the loss of natural vegetation and ESA.   

 
Although, the vegetation types are Least Threatened (LT), it should not have been used as a 

reason to construct the dam within LT vegetation. Moreover, much of the habitat condition 

was classed as natural (i.e., 75% as natural and 20% as near natural) prior to the construction. 

The illegal dam has led to the complete transformation of the site. Kindly note that any loss to 

natural habitat should have been avoided.  

 

There was no suitable habitat rehabilitation plan submitted, although there is mention that 

certain areas need to be rehabilitated, but without such a plan how can the landowner know 

what to rehabilitate, where to rehabilitate and how to rehabilitate? There should also be a 

monitoring regime associated with the plan and the entire plan appended to the EMPr. A list 

of indigenous plants must be included in the rehabilitation plan. This include plants that will 

be used for stabilisation. The rehabilitation plan must consider including areas excluded from 

the construction area that have been damaged or disturbed must be rehabilitated, with 

guidance from a qualified aquatic specialist to a functional and usable condition. Recovery 

following rehabilitation in arid habitats can take more than a few decades, even from 

temporary disturbances, due to the on-going drought. CapeNature does not consider any 

habitat as rehabilitated until a comparable lever of ecosystem functionality has been proven. 

Post construction monitoring of the impacts should be observed for more than one year. 

 
CapeNature reminds the applicant that flooding events can change watercourses within a 

short period. Was long-term recovery and possible impacts in relation to climate change 

patterns (i.e., continued drought and flash flooding events) considered? 

 

Dams reduce water sediment carrying capacity and often result in downstream erosion. All 

erosion mitigation measures towards curbing erosion should be implemented. Thus, any 

 
2 Skowno, A. L., Poole, C. J., Raimondo, D. C., Sink, K. J., Van Deventer, H., Van Niekerk, L., Harris, L. R., Smith-Adao, L. B., Tolley, K. A., 
Zengeya, T. A., Foden, W. B., Midgley, G. F. and Driver, A. 2019. National Biodiversity Assessment 2018: The status of South Africa’s 
ecosystems and biodiversity. Synthesis Report. Pretoria, South Africa. 214 pp. 
3 Pool-Stanvliet, R., Duffell-Canham, A., Pence, G. & Smart, R. 2017. The Western Cape Biodiversity Spatial Plan Handbook. Stellenbosch: 
CapeNature. 
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further construction must be planned for the drier months to minimize the possibility of erosion 

and sedimentation.  

 

CapeNature objects to the introduction of any alien fish species, without the necessary permits 
from CapeNature. These permits will require an Ichthyologist specialist report of the nearly 
aquatic ecosystems to determine if there are any of those fish species currently present within 
that habitat.  

 

CapeNature would like to remind the landowner that in terms of the Conservation of 
Agricultural Resources Act, 1983 (Act No. 43 of 1983) (“CARA”), landowners must prevent 
the spread of alien invasive plants on the property. The level of alien infestation is therefore 
not seen as reducing the sensitivity of a site, nor is the subsequent removal of alien vegetation 
from a property regarded as a mitigation measure due to this is being a legal requirement. 
Infestation by alien plants does not necessarily mean that an area is not important for 
biodiversity as some vegetation types are particularly prone to invasive alien infestation but 
may recover when cleared of alien vegetation. 

 

In addition to CARA, in terms of the Alien and Invasive Species Regulations, NEM: BA, 2014, 
specific alien plant species are either prohibited or listed as requiring a permit; aside from 
restricted activities concerning, inter alia, their spread, and should be removed.  
 
All alien vegetation present at the property should be removed as they are a propagule source 
for further spread of invasive alien plants. The existing alien infestation is a risk to surrounding 
properties and impacting on water availability. CapeNature recommend that an alien clearing 
programme be compiled to eradicate and monitor the spread of invasive alien plants. The 
alien control programme must include the following:  
 

a. A suitable map must be compiled to illustrate the current extent of alien 

vegetation and used to guide the rehabilitation; 

b. Areas cleared of alien species and eroded must be rehabilitated using suitable 

indigenous species recommended by the botanist, and the list must be 

included; 

c. Include a timeframe and methods (i.e. herbicides, pesticides or cutting) for the 

removal of alien plant species; 

d. A vegetation map illustrating the extent of existing vegetation on the current 

property should be compiled and included in the plan. 

If any pesticide or herbicide will be used as a method of alien clearing, then mitigation 
measures to minimise spray drift and buffers to neighbouring indigenous vegetation must be 
compiled. 
 
The Groot River is mapped as a National Freshwater Ecosystem Priority Areas (FEPAs)4 river 
corridor and fish corridor, as stated in the Aquatic report thus the impact of constructing the 
dam within a non-perennial river which flows into the Groot River should have been 
considered. 
 
We strongly recommend improving the riverbanks closer to natural with regards to the plants, 
especially regarding the stabilisation of banks. CapeNature agrees with the proposed 
mitigation measures and PES scores.  
 
In conclusion, CapeNature objects to the introduction of any alien fish and alien plant species. 
Alien invasive species that germinate must be removed and rehabilitated using suitable 

 
4 Nel, J.L., Murray, K.M., Maherry, A.M., Petersen, C.P., Roux, D.J., Driver, A., Hill, L., Van Deventer, H., Funke, N., Swartz, E.R., Smith-Adao, 
L.B., Mbona, N., Downsborough, L. & Nienaber, S. (2011). Technical Report for the National Freshwater Ecosystem Priority Areas project. 
WRC Report No. K5/1801. 
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indigenous species. A botanical specialist should assess the area before the remaining 
vegetation will be removed.  
 
CapeNature reserves the right to revise initial comments and request further information 
based on any additional information that may be received. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Megan Simons 
For: Manager (Landscape Conservation Intelligence)  
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